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United States
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
[X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR tj(OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Quarter Ended August 26, 2012or

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 ars$(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number:0-27446

LANDEC CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 94-302561¢
(State or other jurisdiction « (IRS Employel
incorporation or organizatiot Identification Number

3603 Haven Avenue
Menlo Park, California 94025
(Address of principal executive offices, includirig code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:
(650) 306-1650

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant éb filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirefilésuch reports), and (2) has been su
to such filing requirements for at least the p&sdays.

Yes _X No __
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liéisnitted electronically and posted on its corpok&ebsite, if any, every Interactive Date
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te R of Regulation 3- during the preceding 12 months (or for such whgreriod that th
registrant was required to submit and post sues)il

Yes_ X No_

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-axcelerated filer or a smaller repori
company. See definition of “large accelerated’fiend “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportingnepany” in Rule 12t2 of the Exchanc

Act.
Large Accelerated Filer __ Accelerated Filer X
Non Accelerated Filer __ Smaller Reporting Company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act).
Yes___ No_ X

As of September 21, 2012, there were 25,714sth@4des of Common Stock outstanding.
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ltem 1. Financial Statements

(In thousands except shares and per share amounts)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfaloants of $524 and $512 at August 26, 2012 a

May 27, 2012, respectively
Accounts receivable, related party
Income taxes receivable
Inventories, net
Deferred taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total Current Assets

Investment in non-public company, non-fair value
Investment in non-public company, fair value
Property and equipment, net

Goodwill, net

Trademarks/tradenames, net

Customer relationships, net

Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Related party accounts payable

Accrued compensation

Other accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue

Lines of credit

Current portion of long-term debt
Total Current Liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion
Deferred taxes
Other non-current liabilities
Total Liabilities
Stockholders’ Equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 sharttmazed; 25,709,984 and 25,644,580 share

issued and outstanding at August 26, 2012
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

Total Stockholders’ Equity
Non controlling interest

Total Equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
(1) Derived from audited financial statements.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

and Mag@12, respectively

See accompanying notes.
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August 26, May 27,

2012 2012

(Unaudited) 1)
10,04¢ % 22,17
75€ —
30,29t 31,95:
26¢€ 32%
31€ 47
23,54: 22,01:
2,07¢ 2,07¢
2,83¢ 2,57¢
70,14: 81,16:
793 793
22,89¢ 21,50(
63,77¢ 63,49t
49,62( 49,62(
48,42¢ 48,42¢
10,26¢ 10,557
2,037 2,13¢€
267,96( $ 277,69:
26,72¢ % 22,64«
53z 77€
3,95¢ 5,782
7,56¢€ 18,64
27¢€ 162
7,50(C 11,66¢
7,012 7,012
53,56¢ 66,68
38,93¢ 40,30¢
18,90¢ 18,03’
1,34¢ 1,10¢
112,76( 126,13:
26 26
120,90( 119,89
32,36 29,82:
153,28° 149,74
1,91: 1,81¢
155,20( 151,55¢
267,96( $ 277,69:




LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended

August 26, August 28,
2012 2011

Revenues:

Product sales 101,30: % 72,32:

Services revenue, related party 771 98C
Total revenues 102,07: 73,30:
Cost of revenue:

Cost of product sales 87,66¢ 61,26¢

Cost of services revenue 647 782
Total cost of revenue 88,31: 62,05!
Gross profit 13,76: 11,25(
Operating costs and expenses:

Research and development 2,20¢ 2,33:

Selling, general and administrative 8,55¢ 6,04<
Total operating costs and expenses 10,76( 8,371
Operating income 3,00: 2,87¢
Dividend income 281 281
Interest income 26 76
Interest expense (541 (17€)
Other income 1,35¢ 9
Net income before taxe 4,12¢ 3,06:
Income tax expense (1,497) (1,110
Consolidated net income 2,63¢ 1,95:
Non controlling interes (97) (147)
Net income applicable to Common Stockholc 2,53¢ 1,81%
Basic net income per share 0.1C $ 0.07
Diluted net income per share 0.1C $ 0.07
Shares used in per share computation
Basic 25,67( 26,40¢
Diluted 26,21: 26,68
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Interest rate swap — (54)
Income tax benefit — 20
Other comprehensive income, net of tax — (39
Comprehensive income attributable to Common Shédeho 253¢ % 1,77¢

See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net income

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense

Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense

Increase in long-term receivable
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Deferred taxes

Change in investment in non-public company (fairketivalue)

Changes in current assets and current liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable, related party
Income taxes receivable
Inventories, net
Issuance of notes and advances receivable
Collection of notes and advances receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Related party accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment

Purchase of marketable securities

Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities
Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from sale of common stock

Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps and RSUs
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation expense
Earn out payment from Lifecore acquisition
Payments on long-term debt

Payments on lines of credit

Decrease in other assets

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Net decrease in cash and cash equiva

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental schedule of noncash operating aetviti
Long-term receivable from Monsanto
Unrealized (gain) loss from interest rate s\

See accompanying notes.
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Three months Ended

August 26, August 28,
2012 2011
2,636 % 1,95:
1,85¢ 1,35¢
34¢ 441
(505) (1,280
— (200)
18C —
86¢ (299)
(1,39¢6) (52
1,65¢ 1,29:
55 40
23€ 1,32¢
(1,537 53z
— (752)
— 5
(260) 19t
4,08( 1,41z
(243%) 71
(1,829 (45€)
(1,435 27¢€
364 (1,507)
5,08t 4,35¢
(2,029 (1,567
(75€) (18,163
— 14,17¢
(2,785 (5,549
20z —
(49) (25)
50& 1,28(
(9,650 —
(1,369 (2,000
(4,166€) —
99 43
(14,42%) 29¢
(12,12 (893%)
22,17 8,13¢F
10,04¢ $ 7,242
— 3 20C
— % 34




LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Organization, Basis of Presentatiomd Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landecthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aibpolymer products for food and
agricultural products, medical devices and licernsainer applications that incorporate Landec’sipi@d polymer technologies. The Company has
two proprietary polymer technology platforms: fjdlimer® polymers, and 2) hyaluronan (“HA”) biogoiers. The Company’s HA biopolymers are
proprietary in that they are specially formulated $pecific customers to meet strict regulatoryunegments. The Company’s polymer technologies,
along with its customer relationships and trade egrare the foundation, and a key differentiatidiggatage, upon which Landec has built its
business. The Company sells specialty packagst-txg vegetables and whole produce to retailers &rimlstores, primarily in the United States, /
and Canada, through its Apio, Inc. (“Apio”) subsigi and HA-based biomaterials through its LifecBi@medical, Inc. (“Lifecore”) subsidiary.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finantééments of Landec have been prepared in accadeitit accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States for intdimancial information and with the instructiong féorm 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. In
the opinion of management, all adjustments (coinsjgif normal recurring accruals) have been madelwére necessary to present fairly the financial
position at August 26, 2012 and the results of afp@ns and cash flows for all periods presentetthoigh Landec believes that the disclosures ine
financial statements are adequate to make thenmaftion presented not misleading, certain infornmatiormally included in financial statements and
related footnotes prepared in accordance with adoay principles generally accepted in the Unitéak&s have been condensed or omitted in
accordance with the rules and regulations of treiftées and Exchange Commission. The accomparfinagcial data should be reviewed in
conjunction with the audited financial statememtd accompanying notes included in Landec's AnnegldR on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
May 27, 2012.

The results of operations for the three months @édegust 26, 2012 are not necessarily indicativéhefresults that may be expected for an
entire fiscal year because there is some seaspiralitpio’s food business, particularly, Apio’s Fb&xport business and the order patterns of
Lifecore’s customers which may lead to significnttuations in Landec’s quarterly results of opienas.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presemidhbe accrual basis of accounting in accordariteWS. generally accepted accounting
principles and include the accounts of Landec &édubsidiaries, Apio, Lifecore and Landec Ag. wkterial inter-company transactions and balances
have been eliminated.

Arrangements that are not controlled through votingimilar rights are reviewed under the guidaiocevariable interest entities (“VIES”). A
company is required to consolidate the assetdlitiab and operations of a VIE if it is determintxbe the primary beneficiary of the VIE.

An entity is a VIE and subject to consolidationbyf design: a) the total equity investment at isskot sufficient to permit the entity to finance
its activities without additional subordinated fireéal support provided by any parties, includingiggholders or b) as a group the holders of thaitg
investment at risk lack any one of the followingetl characteristics: (i) the power, through votilg@its or similar rights to direct the activitieban
entity that most significantly impact the entitgsonomic performance, (ii) the obligation to absihi expected losses of the entity, or (iii) thghtito
receive the expected residual returns of the enftthg Company reviewed the consolidation guidameecancluded that the non-public companies in
which the Company holds equity investments arevibs.




Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to make certain
estimates and judgments that affect the amountstegpin the financial statements and accompanyatgs. The accounting estimates that require
management’s most significant and subjective judgmimclude revenue recognition; sales returnsadlodvances; recognition and measurement of
current and deferred income tax assets and liisilithe assessment of recoverability of long-ligsdets; the valuation of intangible assets and
inventory; the valuation of investments; and thiiadon and recognition of stock-based compensation

These estimates involve the consideration of cornfaletors and require management to make judgmeéhesanalysis of historical and future
trends can require extended periods of time tovesand is subject to change from period to peridte actual results may differ from management’s
estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshathree months or less from date of purchase tomibaas cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents consist mainly of certificate of dep@$CDs), money market funds and U.S. Treasuflége market value of cash equivalents
approximates their historical cost given their stterm nature.

Marketable Securities

Short-term marketable securities consist of CDsdh@ FDIC insured and single A or better rated icipal bonds with original maturities of
more than three months at the date of purchasediega of the maturity date as the Company viewduhds within its portfolio aavailable for use i
its current operations . The Company classifiededt securities with readily determined markdtea as “available for sale” The contractual
maturities of the Company's marketable securitias @re due in less than one year represent $G&/D$0 of its marketable securities as of August
26, 2012 and May 27, 2012, respectively. The Caomplid not have any marketable securities with mits greater than one year at August 26, :
or May 27, 2012. Investments in marketable sdesrdre carried at fair market value. Unrealizaithg and losses are reported as a component of
stockholders’ equity. The cost of debt securiiseadjusted for amortization of premiums and disttewo maturity. This amortization is recorded to
interest income. Realized gains and losses osaleeof available-fosale securities are also recorded to interest ircamd were not significant for t
three months ended August 26, 2012 and August@Bl,.2During the three months ended August 26, 20iPAugust 28, 2011, the Company did not
sell any marketable securities. The cost of séearsold is based on the specific identificaticztmod.

Financial Instruments

The Company'’s financial instruments are primaridynposed of marketable securities, commercial-teaatet payables, grower advances, and notes
receivable, as well as long-term notes receivahtedebt instruments. For short-term instrumehis historical carrying amount approximates the fair
value of the instrument. The fair value of longrtedebt and lines of credit approximates theiryiag value. Fair values for long-term financial
instruments not readily marketable are estimatsgdapon discounted future cash flows at prevaitiagket interest rates. Based on these
assumptions, management believes the fair marke¢vaf the Company’s financial instruments arematerially different from their recorded
amounts as of August 26, 2012 or May 27, 2012.

Investments in Non-Public Companies

The Company’s investment in Aesthetic Science Caan is carried at cost and adjusted for impairhi@sses. Since there is no readily
available market value information, the Companyqaically reviews this investment to determinerfyather than temporary declines in value have
occurred based on the financial stability and Vigbof Aesthetic Science.

Aesthetic Science sold the rights to its Smartflijéctor System on July 16, 2010. As a result,deanevaluated its cost method investment
for impairment, utilizing a discounted cash flonadysis. Based on the terms of the agreement, ¢imep@ny determined that its investment was other
than temporarily impaired and therefore, recordedrgpairment loss of $1.0 million as of May 30, R0IThe Company’s carrying value of its
investment in Aesthetic Sciences, net of the inmpaitt loss, is $793,000 at August 26, 2012 and May2Q12.
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On February 15, 2011, the Company made an investm&indset Holdings 2010 Ltd., a Canadian corgora(*Windset”), which is
reported as an investment in non-public compariyy&due, in the accompanying Consolidated BaldBlceets as of August 26, 2012 and May 27,
2012. The Company has elected to account for its
investment in Windset under the fair value optisee( Note 4).

Intangible Assets

The Companys intangible assets are comprised of customeiigpfdtips with a finite estimated useful life of tweto thirteen years and tra
names and goodwill with indefinite lives.

Finite-lived intangible assets are reviewed forgilde impairment whenever events or changes imgistances occur that indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset (or asset group) mapececoverable. Indefinite lived intangible assee reviewed for impairment at least annually by
comparing the fair value of the asset to its cagyialue to determine if there has been an impaitm&oodwill is reviewed for impairment at least
annually by comparing the fair value of the relatelorting unit to its carrying value to determihthere has been an impairment.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurement accoufatirilmancial assets and liabilities and for fineddénstruments and certain other item:
fair value. The Company has elected the fair vajptéon for its investment in a non-public compdsge Note 4). The Company has not elected the
fair value option for any of its other eligible &incial assets or liabilities.

The accounting guidance established a three-teatdhy for fair value measurements, which pripetsi the inputs used in measuring fair
value as follows:

Level 1 — observable inputs such as quoted pfmeidentical instruments in active markets.

Level 2 -inputs other than quoted prices in active markets are observable either directly or indirectlgotigh corroboration with observal
market data.

Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which therittle or no market data, which would require then@pany to develop its own assumptions.

As of August 26, 2012, the Company held certaietssand liabilities that are required to be meabatdair value on a recurring basis,
including cash equivalents, marketable securiii@erest rate swap and liability for contingent sigleration in connection with the acquisition of
GreenLine and its minority interest investment imdget.

The fair value of the Company’s cash equivalentsraarketable securities is determined based omaddsie inputs that are readily available
in public markets or can be derived from informatavailable in publicly quoted markets. Therefohe, Company has categorized its cash equivalents
and marketable securities as Level 1.

The fair value of the Compargyinterest rate swap is determined based on moplets that can be observed in a liquid marketuitiolg yield
curves, and is categorized as Level 2 inputs.

The fair value of the Company'’s liability for congient consideration is based on significant inpotsobserved in the market and thus
represents a Level 3 measurement. The Compansndetsl the fair value of the liability for the camjent consideration based on a probability-
weighted discounted cash flow analysis, as furtierussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Finand&tegents.

The Company has elected the fair value option obawting for its investment in Windset. The faituaof the Company’s investment in
Windset utilizes significant unobservable inputshia discounted cash flow models, including pr@datash flows, growth rates and discount rates
a result, the Company’s investment in Windset issgtered to be a Level 3 measurement investmefiyther discussed in Note 4. The change in the
fair market value of the Company’s investment imdéet for the three months ended August 26, 202dwa to the Company’s 20.1% minority
interest in the change in the fair market valugiidset during that period. In determining thie ¥&lue of the investment in Windset, the Company
utilizes the following significant unobservable irp in the discounted cash flow models:

At August At May 27,

26, 2012 2012
Revenue growth rates 3% to 10% 3% to 24%
Expense growth rates 3% to 8% 3% to 18%
Income tax rates 8% to 25% 25%
Discount rates 16% to 27% 16% to 27%




The revenue growth, expense gramitincome tax rate assumptions, consider the Coyrghest estimate of the trends in those items
over the discount period. The discount rate agsiom takes into account the risk-free rate of metthe market equity risk premium and the
Company'’s specific risk premium and then appliesdditional discount for lack of marketability dfet underlying securities. The discounted cash
flow valuation model used by the Company has tlleviang sensitivity to changes in inputs and asstioms (in thousands):

Impact on value
of Windset
investment as of
August 26, 2012
10% increase in revenue growth rates $ 1,00(
10% increase in expense growth rates $ (600C)
10% increase in income tax rates $ (100)
10% increase in discount rates $ (250)

Imprecision in estimating unobservable market ismatn affect the amount of gain or loss recordea foarticular position. The use of
different methodologies or assumptions to deterrttiecfair value of certain financial instrumentsicbresult in a different estimate of fair valuettase
reporting date.

The following table summarizes the fair value ¢ @ompany’s assets and liabilities that are medsairéir value on a recurring basis as of August
26, 2012 and May 27, 2012 (in thousands):

Fair Value at August 26, 2012 Fair Value at May 27, 2012

Assets: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Marketable securities $ 75€ $ - $ - $ - 9 - $ =
Investment in private company - - 22,89¢ - - 21,50(

Total $ 75€ $ - % 2289% $ - $ - % 21,50(
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration $ - $ - 8 3,95¢ 3% - $ - 8 3,92¢
Interest rate swap - 30& - = 347 =

Total $ - $ 30 3 3,95¢ $ - $ 347 % 3,92¢

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when the earnings processriplete, as evidenced by an agreement with themest transfer of title, and
acceptance, if applicable, as well as fixed pri@ng probable collectibility. We record pricindgoaéances, including discounts based on arrangements
with customers, which we recognize in revenue @slaction to both accounts receivable and net rtexen

When a sales arrangement contains multiptenehts, the Company allocates revenue to eeahent based on a selling price
hierarchy. The relative selling price for a detadgle is based on its vendor-specific objectivelence (VSOE), if available, third-party evidence
(TPE), if VSOE is not available, or estimated sgjlprice if neither VSOE nor TPE is available. Tmmpany
then recognizes revenue on each deliverablaccordance with its policies for producid &ervice revenue recognition. The Company is not
typically able to determine VSOE or TPE, and theref uses estimated selling prices to alaavenue between the elements of the
arrangement.

The Company limits the amount of revenue recognmitdy delivered elements to the amount that iscootingent on the future delivery of
products or services or future performance obligegtior subject to customsepecific cancellation rights. The Company evaluatesh deliverable in &
arrangement to determine whether they represeatatepunits of accounting. A deliverable constildeseparate unit of accounting when it has stand-
alone value, and for an arrangement that includgenaral right of return relative to the deliveprdducts or services, delivery or
performance of the undelivered product orisenis considered probable and is subst@yntahtrolled by the Company. The Company
considers a deliverable to have stand-alone vélihe iproduct or service is sold separately byGbenpany or another vendor or could be resold by the
customer. Further, the revenue arrangementgraiyn do not include a general right of reteelative to the delivered products. Where the
aforementioned criteria for a separate unit of aotiog are not met, the deliverable is combinedh e undelivered element(s) and treated as aesingl
unit of accounting for the purposes of allocatiénhe arrangement consideration and revenue rédmgn The Company allocates the
total arrangement consideration to each sefgarelement of an arrangement based upomdlaive selling price of each element. Aliboa
of the consideration is determined at arrangenma@gtion on the basis of each unit’s relative sgllprice. In instances where the
Company has not established fair value foy undelivered element, revenue for all eletsien deferred until delivery of the final elent is
completed and all recognition criteria are met.



Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to peaod financial statements to conform to the curperiod presentation.
New Accounting Pronouncements
Intangible-Goodwill and Other

In September 2011, the FASB issued new guidandeviiallow an entity to first assess qualitatifeetors to determine whether it is
necessary to perform the two-step quantitative gdbonpairment test. Under this amendment, antgntould not be required to calculate the fair
value of a reporting unit unless the entity detewsj based on a qualitative assessment, thanibiis likely than not that its fair value is lesartkits
carrying amount. The amendment includes a numbevents and circumstances for an entity to comsideonducting the qualitative
assessment. The guidance is effective for fiseatyybeginning after December 15, 2011 with eattpton permitted. The adoption of this update
did not have a material impact on the Company’sobdated financial statements.

Presentation of Comprehensive Incc

In December 2011, the FASB issued new guidancdrtimbves the comparability, consistency, and pansncy of financial reporting and
increases the prominence of items reported in abeprehensive income by eliminating the optiopresent components of other comprehensive
income as part of the statement of changes in baddkrs' equity. The amendments in this standaydire that all non-owner changes in stockholders
equity be presented either in a single continutaiesent of comprehensive income or in two sepdmateonsecutive statements. Under either
method, adjustments must be displayed for itemisatteareclassified from other comprehensive inc@ifI") to net income, in both net income and
OCI. The standard does not change the currergrofir presenting components of OCI gross or n¢ghefeffect of income taxes, provided that such
tax effects are presented in the statement in w@iChis presented or disclosed in the notes tdittamacial statements. Additionally, the standaogsl
not affect the calculation or reporting of earnipgs share. For public entities, the amendmentisisnASU are effective for fiscal years, and interi
periods within those years, beginning after Decamibe 2011 and are to be applied retrospectiveit aarly adoption permitted. The Company
adopted this standard for the quarter ended Aufys2012.




Fair Value Measuremet

In May 2011, the FASB issued new guidance effedtiveannual reporting periods beginning after Debenil5, 2011. This guidance amends
certain accounting and disclosure requirementse@l® fair value measurements. Additional disstesequirements in the update include: (1) for
Level 3 fair value measurements, quantitative imi@tion about unobservable inputs used, a desamipfithe valuation processes used by the entity,
and a qualitative discussion about the sensitvitthe measurements to changes in the unobserivghles; (2) for an entity’s use of a nonfinancial
asset that is different from the asset’s highedttzst use, the reason for the difference; (3jif@ncial instruments not measured at fair valuefou
which disclosure of fair value is required, the failue hierarchy level in which the fair value rme@ments were determined; and (4) the disclodure o
all transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of thevialue hierarchy. The Company adopted thisdsiad for the quarter ended August 26, 2012.

Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabili

In November 2011, the FASB issued new guidance®fiefor annual reporting periods beginning Japudar2013. This guidance amends
the disclosure requirements around offsetting abénusers of the financial statements to undeddtam effect of those arrangements on its financial
position. Entities are required to disclose bgrtss and net information about the instrumentsteamactions eligible for offset in the statemeait
financial position and instruments and transactmutgect to an agreement similar to a master mettirangement. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this standard to have a material impadts consolidated financial statements.

2. Acquisitions
GreenLine Holding Company

On April 23, 2012 (the “GreenLine Acquisition DateApio acquired all of the outstanding equity ak@nLine Holding Company
(“GreenLine”) pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agredrftae “GreenLine Purchase Agreement”) in ordegxtpand its product offerings and enter into
new markets such a foodservice. GreenLine, heatiqed in Perrysburg, Ohio, was a privately-helthpany and is the leading processor and
marketer of value-added, fresh-cut green beanoithMmerica. GreenLine has four processing plantseach in Ohio, Pennsylvania, Florida and
California and distribution centers in New York gdduth Carolina.

Under the GreenLine Purchase Agreement, the aggregasideration paid at closing consisted of $&&lBon in cash, including
$4.7 million that is held in an escrow accounteowse Landec’s indemnification rights with respectertain matters, including breaches of
representations, warranties and covenants. Iriaddihe Company may be required to pay in castowgm additional $7.0 million in earn out
payments in the event that GreenLine achievesinagaenue targets during calendar year 2012. eline out is comprised of $4.0 million for
achieving a certain revenue target during calegdar 2012, and up to an additional $3.0 milliondaceeding the revenue target by $3.0 million or
more. The Company has performed an analysis ¢égtenl revenues for GreenLine and has concludedttbee is a reasonable probability that
GreenLine will meet, but not exceed, the initialesue target and therefore, the Company has redz&8l® million, representing the present value of
the fair market value of the expected earn out paym

The acquisition date fair value of the total coesadion transferred was $66.8 million, which cotesisof the following (in thousands):

Cash $ 62,90(
Contingent consideration 3,92¢
Total $ 66,82¢

The assets and liabilities of GreenLine were reedrak their respective estimated fair values deeflate of the acquisition using generally
accepted accounting principles for business contibins. The excess of the purchase price over thedhue of the net identifiable assets acquiresl ha
been allocated to goodwill. Goodwill representsilassantial portion of the acquisition proceeds heeaof the workforce in-place at acquisition and
because of GreenLine’s long history and future peots. Management believes that there is fughmwsth potential by extending GreenLine’s
product lines into new channels, such as club store
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The following table summarizes the estimated falues of GreenLine’s assets acquired and liatslgiessumed and related deferred income
taxes, effective April 23, 2012, the date the Conypabtained control of GreenLine (in thousands).

Accounts receivable, net $ 7,057
Inventories, net 1,40¢
Property and equipment 11,66¢
Other tangible assets 30¢€
Intangible assets 43,50(
Total identifiable assets acquired 63,94:
Accounts payable and other liabilities (8,39))
Deferred taxes (1,887)
Total liabilities assumed (10,277
Net identifiable assets acquired 53,66¢
Goodwill 13,15¢
Net assets acquired $ 66,82¢

The Company used a combination of the market agtlajgproaches to estimate the fair values of tlee@rine assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. During the measurement period (whicbtisonexceed one year from the acquisition dale) Gompany is required to retrospectively adjust
the provisional assets or liabilities if new infation is obtained about facts and circumstancesttisted as of the acquisition date that, if knpwn
would have resulted in the recognition of thosetsser liabilities as of that date. No adjustrsemére made to the fair values of GreenLine assets
acquired or liabilities assumed during the threath® ended August 26, 2012.

Intangible Asset

The fair value of indefinite and finite-lived intgible assets was determined using a discountedfioagimodel, under an income valuation
methodology, based on management’s five-year piiojesof revenues, gross profits and operatingiggroy fiscal year and assumes a 40% effective
tax rate for each year. Management takes intouatdbe historical trends of GreenLine and the gtducategories in which GreenLine operates along
with inflationary factors, current economic conalits, new product introductions, cost of sales, gy expenses, capital requirements and other
relevant data when developing its projection. Tioenpany believes that the level and timing of ptgd cash flows appropriately reflect market
participant assumptions. The projected cash floas fthese intangibles were based on key assumpigisas estimates of revenues and operating
profits related to the intangibles over their retppe forecast periods. The resultant cash flowsewieen discounted using a rate the Company balieve
is appropriate given the inherent risks associafiéid each intangible asset and reflect market pigeint assumptions.

The Company identified two intangible assets innemtion with the GreenLine acquisition: trade nasred trademarks valued at $36.0
million, which is considered to be an indefinitielasset and therefore, will not be amortized; @mstomer base valued at $7.5 million with a thintee
year useful life. The trade name/trademark intalegiisset was valued using the relief from roya#tijuation method and the customer relationship
intangible asset was valued using the distributethod.

Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred owefatin values assigned to the assets acquiredaitities assumed was $13.2 million, which
represents the goodwill amount resulting from tbgugsition which can be attributable to GreenLinetsg history, future prospects and the expected
operating synergies from combining GreenLine witlh Apio fresh-cut, value-added vegetable businésme of the goodwill is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes. The Compaijtegt goodwill for impairment on an annual basisooner, if indicators of impairment are
present. As of August 26, 2012, there have beerhanges to the amount of goodwill initially rectmgrd upon the acquisition of GreenLine.
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Liability for Contingent Consideratio

In addition to the cash consideration paid to tivener shareholder of GreenLine, the Company maggeired to pay up to an additional
$7.0 million in earn out payments based on Greemhithieving certain revenue targets in calendar3@h2. The fair value of the liability for the
contingent consideration recognized on the acdoisdate was $3.9 million and is classified as a-oorrent liability in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of August 26, 2012 and May 27, 2012. Cidmpany determined the fair value of the liabifity the contingent consideration based on a
probability-weighted discounted cash flow analysi#is fair value measurement is based on sigmificgputs not observed in the market and thus
represents a Level 3 measurement. If the revargettfor calendar 2012 is achieved, the Compafiypay a minimum of $4.0 million of the earn out
during the third quarter of fiscal year 2013.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

The $1.9 million of net deferred tax liabilitiesstating from the acquisition was primarily relatedhe difference between the book basis and
tax basis of the intangible assets and net opgraisses that were assumed by the Company in thesition.

Lifecore Biomedical, Inc.

On April 30, 2010, the Company acquired all of teenmon stock of Lifecore Biomedical, Inc. (“Life@d) pursuant to a Stock Purchase
Agreement (“Lifecore Purchase Agreement”) in orileexpand its product offerings and enter into meavkets. Lifecore was a privately-held
hyaluronan-based biomaterials company located esKdn Minnesota. Lifecore is principally involviedthe development and manufacture of
products utilizing hyaluronan, a naturally occugripolysaccharide that is widely distributed in éxtracellular matrix of connective tissues in both
animals and humans.

Under the Lifecore Purchase Agreement, the Compaid/to the former Lifecore stockholder at clos#.0 million in cash, which include
$6.6 million held in an escrow account. Half of #sscrow or $3.3 million was released and paitieddrmer Lifecore shareholder in May 2011. The
other half was released and paid to the formercbife shareholder in May 2012. In addition to tastcconsideration paid to the former shareholder of
Lifecore, the Lifecore Purchase Agreement includeearn out payment of up to an additional $10l0amibased on Lifecore achieving certain
revenue targets in calendar years 2011 and 20th2selrevenue targets were achieved in calenda2@@arand the $10.0 million earn out payment
was paid by the Company to the former shareholfleifecore on May 29, 2012.

3. Sale of Landec Ag

On June 24, 2012, Landec entered into a stock paechgreement and two licensing agreements (seedlNaith INCOTEC® Coating and
Seed Technology Companies (“INCOTEC"), a leadingjufer of seed and coating technology productssemdices to the seed industry.

In the stock purchase agreement, Landec sold iityeigterest in its seed subsidiary, Landec Ag Lit€INCOTEC for $600,000, which resulted in a
gain of $400,000. Under accounting guidance, bez#he stock purchase agreement was entered itite same time the license agreements were
consummated (a multiple element agreement), aguod the gain, or $300,000 has been deferred dhbewecognized as revenue monthly from the
sale date over the seven year life of the PollinBtos®license agreement (see Note 5). The remainin@,$00 of the gain was recognized durinc
three months ended August 26, 2012 and has beerdegtas a reduction to selling, general and aditnative expenses.

4, Investments in non-public companies

In December 2005, Landec entered into a licensimgeanent with Aesthetic Sciences for the exclusiyets to use Landec's Intelimer
materials technology for the development of derfifiats worldwide under the agreement. The Compi@tgived shares of preferred stock in
exchange for the license with a valuation of $1lifion. Aesthetic Sciences sold the rights to ite&8tfil™ Injector System on July 16, 2010. Landec
has evaluated its investment in Aesthetic Sciefaeisnpairment, utilizing a discounted cash flonafysis under the terms of the purchase
agreement. Based on the terms of the sale, thep@wyrdetermined that its investment was other tearporarily impaired and therefore, recorded an
impairment charge of $1.0 million as of May 30, @0TThe Company'’s carrying value of its investmenesthetic Sciences is $793,000 as of August
26, 2012 and May 27, 2012. No additional impairtreas been determined for the Company’s investinefsésthetic Sciences.
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On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharetfase agreement (the “Windset Purchase Agreemaitti’Windset. Pursuant to the
Windset Purchase Agreement, Apio purchased 15G60i@r preferred shares for $15 million and 201 mam shares for $201 that were issued by
Windset (the “Purchased Shares”). The Companyisncon shares represent a 20.1% interest in Windgw®. nonvoting senior preferred shares yi
a cash dividend of 7.5% annually. The dividenpagable within 90 days of each anniversary of tteretion of the Windset Purchase Agreement and
the first dividend payment of $1.1 million was madéay 2012. The Windset Purchase Agreement iregudput and call option, which can be
exercised on the sixth anniversary of the WindsetRase Agreement whereby Apio can exercise théopaell its Purchased Shares to Windset, or
Windset can exercise the call to purchase the ReezthShares from Apio, in either case, at a proalego 20.1% of the appreciation in the fair marke
value of Windset from the date of the Company’sstment through the put and call date, plus thehmse price of the Purchased Sharesder the
terms of the arrangement with Windset, the Compsieyptitled to designate one of five members orBibard of Directors of Windset.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the investrin Windset does not qualify for equity methaedaunting as the investment does not
meet the criteria of in-substance common stocktdweturns through the annual dividend on t he wating senior preferred shares that are not
available to the common stock holders. As thegput call options require the Purchased Shares paber called in equal proportions, the Company
has deemed that the investment, in substance,csheuteated as a single security for purposesagumting. The Company has adopted fair value
option in the accounting for its investment in \8rtleffective on the acquisition date. The falugaf the Company’s investment in Windset utilizes
significant unobservable inputs in the discountashcflow models, including projected cash flowsvgh rates and discount rates (see Note 1) and is
therefore considered a Level 3 for fair value measient purposes. The Company believes that regaitt investment at fair value provides its
investors with useful information on the performarnd the Company’s investment and the anticipapgatexiation in value as Windset expands its
business.

The fair value of the Company’s investment in Weetdsas determined utilizing a discounted cash fioadel based on projections developed
by Windset, and considers the put and call conwrrgptions. These features impact the duratidhetash flow utilized to derive the estimated fair
value of the investment. Assumptions includechimdiscounted cash flow model will be evaluatedrguly based on Windset's actual and projected
operating results to determine the change in fline.

During the three months ended August 26, 2012 arglist 28, 2011, the Company recorded $281,000videtid income. The change in the
fair market value of the Company’s investment imdéet for the three months ended August 26, 20d22aigust 28, 2011 was $1.4 million and
$52,000, respectively, and is included in otheoime in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The Company also entered into an exclusive licagseement with Windset, which was executed in A0i®, prior to contemplation of
Apio’s investment in Windset (see Note 5).

5. License Agreements

Monsanto

On December 1, 2006, Landec entered into a five-geaxclusive technology license and polymer syjpgreement (“the Monsanto
Agreement”) with Monsanto Company (“Monsanto”) the use of Landec’s Intellicogbolymer seed coating technology. On December 1120
Monsanto terminated the Monsanto Agreement andtpai€ompany a $4 million termination fee and iglhts to the Intellicoatseed coating

technology reverted to Landec.

For the three months ended August 28, 2011, Laretsgnized $1.35 million in license revenues frown Monsanto Agreement.
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INCOTEC

In connection with the sale of Landec Ag to INCOT&CJune 24, 2012 (see Note 3), Landec enterecistwven-year exclusive technology
license and polymer supply agreement with INCOTEClie use of Landec’s Intellico@ipolymer seed coating technology for male inbrech eahnich
is sold under the Pollinator Plus label. Thisrise does not include the use of Intellicoat fordbmtrolled release of an active ingredient for
agricultural applications which was retained by den Landec will be the exclusive supplier of iPalfor Plus polymer to INCOTEC during the term
of the license agreement. Landec will receiveyalty equal to 20% of the revenues realized by INEG from the sale of or sublicense of Pollinator
Plus coatings during the first four years of theeagnent and 10% for the last three years of theesgent.

On June 24, 2012, Landec also entered into a ®@ag-gxclusive technology license and polymer supghgement with INCOTEC for the
joint development of new polymer and unique coatiftg use in seed treatment formulations. In &gieement, Landec will receive a value st
which will be mutually agreed to by both partie®pto each application being developed.

Air Products

In March 2006, Landec entered into an exclusivense and research and development agreement wilré@ducts and Chemicals, Inc. (“Air
Products”). In accordance with the agreement, kandceives 40% of the direct profit generated ftbensale of products by Air Products occurring
after April 1, 2007, that incorporate Landec’s Imer materials.

Chiquita

In September 2007, the Company amended its licgresid supply agreement with Chiquita Brands Intéonal, Inc. (“Chiquita”). Under
the terms of the amendment, the license for banaaasxpanded to include additional exclusive §elding Landec’s BreatheWay® packaging
technology, and a new exclusive license was adolethé sale and marketing of avocados and mandog Landec’s BreatheWay packaging
technology. The agreement with Chiquita, whichdDita has elected to renew for another five yeaimugh December 2016, requires Chiquita to pay
annual gross profit minimums to Landec in order@hiquita to maintain its exclusive license for aas, avocados and mangos. Under the terms of
the agreement, Chiquita must notify Landec befogeddnber Ftof each year whether it is going to maintain itslesive license for the following
calendar year and thus agree to pay the minimuntbd&b year. Landec was notified by Chiquita inviimber 2011 that Chiquita had chosen to
maintain its exclusive license for calendar yeat28nd thus agreed at that time to pay the minigross profit for calendar year 2012.

Windset

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieeagreement with Windset for Windset to utilize tlao’s proprietary breathable packaging
to extend the shelf life of greenhouse grown cucensipeppers and tomatoes (“Exclusive Products’accordance with the agreement, Apio rece
and recorded a one-time upfront research and dewelnt fee of $100,000 and will receive license fe@sal to 3% of net revenue of the Exclusive
Products utilizing the proprietary breathable paikg technology, with or without the BreatheWayg@demark. The ongoing license fees are subije
annual minimums of $150,000 for each of the thypes of exclusive product as each is added todgreement. As of August 26, 2012, one product
has been added to the agreement.

6. Stock-Based Compensation

In the three months ended August 26, 2012, the @asnpecognized stock-based compensation exper&218f000 or $0.01 per basic and
diluted share, which included $157,000 for restidcstock unit awards and $191,000 for stock omgiamts. In the three months ended August 28,
2011, the Company recognized stock-based compensatpense of $441,000 or $0.02 per basic andedilsthare, which included $202,000 for
restricted stock unit awards and $239,000 for styation grants.

The following table summarizes the stock-based eragtion by income statement line item:

Three Months Three Months

Ended Ended
August 26, 201. August 28, 201:
Research and development $ 110,00¢ $ 124,00(
Sales, general and administrative 238,00( 317,00(
Total stock-based compensation $ 348,000 $ 441,00(
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As of August 26, 2012, there was $1.4 million dataunrecognized compensation expense relatedvested equity compensation awards
granted under the Landec incentive stock plangalExpense is expected to be recognized over gightedaverage period of 1.4 years for both st
options and restricted stock unit awards.

7. Diluted Net Income Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation dfitéd net income per share (in thousands, excepsipare amounts):

Three Three
Months Months
Ended Ended
August August
26, 2012 28, 2011
Numerator:
Net income applicable to Common Stockholc $ 2,53¢ $ 1,812
Denominator:
Weighted average shares for basic net income ee sh 25,67( 26,40¢
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock units 542 27¢
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipare 26,21: 26,681
Diluted net income per share $ 0.1C $ 0.07

For the three months ended August 26, 2012 and tif}) 2011, the computation of the diluted nebine per share excludes the impact of
options to purchase 277,489 shares and 1.8 milames of Common Stock, respectively, as such itepemuld be antidilutive for these periods.

8. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the three momthded August 26, 2012 was $1.5 million. The effectax rate for the three months en
August 26, 2012 was 37 percent, compared to 38&pefor the first quarter of fiscal year 2012. ®itective tax rate for the three months ended
August 26, 2012 differs from the statutory fedémabme tax rate of 35 percent as a result of séf@ctors, including state taxes, domestic
manufacturing deductions, non-deductible stock-th&senpensation expense and the benefit of staéanmes and development credits.

As of May 27, 2012, the Company had unrecognizedémefits of approximately $766,000. Includedhie balance of unrecognized tax
benefits as of May 27, 2012 is approximately $508,0f tax benefits that, if recognized, would régulan adjustment to the Company’s effective tax
rate. The Company expects its unrecognized taxfite e change by $8,000 within the next twelve itharelated to the expiration of tax attributes.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the Compasydecided to classify interest and penaltiege@lto uncertain tax positions as a
component of its provision for income taxes. TherPany has accrued an insignificant amount of éstesind penalties relating to the income tax on
the unrecognized tax benefits as of August 26, 200May 27, 2012.

Due to tax attribute carry forwards, the Compansuiject to examination for tax years 1996 and fateU.S. tax purposes. The Company
was also subject to examination in various staiedictions for tax years 1998 and later, none biclv were individually significant.
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9. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (finsfirst-out method) or market and consisted ef fibllowing (in thousands):

August 26, May 27,

2012 2012
Finished goods $ 11,237 $ 9,40¢
Raw materials 9,16( 9,87¢
Work in progress 3,14¢ 2,72¢
Total $ 23,54 $ 22,01:

10. Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thands):
August 26, 2012 May 27, 2012

Real estate loan agreement with General Electrpit@laCorporation (“GE Capital”); due

in monthly principal and interest payments of $088, through May 1, 2022 with

interest based on a fixed rate of 4.02% per annum $ 17,73¢ $ 17,95’
Real estate bridge loan agreement with GE Capitsd;in monthly principal and interest

payments of $8,902 with a lump sum final principayment due on May 1, 2013 with

interest based on a fixed rate of 4.02% per annum 1,18¢ 1,20(¢
Capital equipment loan with GE Capital; due in nibyprincipal and interest payments of

$175,356 through May 1, 2019 with interest based fired rate of 4.39% per annum 12,27" 12,66(
Term note with BMO Harris; due in monthly paymeot$250,000 through May 23, 2016

with interest payable monthly at LIBOR plus 2% panum 11,25( 12,00(

Industrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”) issued by Lifegodue in annual payments through
2020 with interest at a variable rate set weeklyh®ybond remarketing agent (0.33%

and 0.42% at August 26, 2012 and May 27, 2012 ectaely) 3,50( 3,50(
Total 45,94¢ 47,317
Less current portion (7,012) (7,012)
Long-term portion $ 38,93¢ $ 40,30¢

In addition to entering into the GE Capital redbés and equipment loans mentioned above, on 2BriR012 in connection with the
acquisition of GreenLine, Apio also entered intiva-year, $25.0 million asset-based working cdp#aolving line of credit with GE Capital, with an
interest rate of LIBOR plus 2%, with monthly availity based on the combination of the eligible @aats receivable and eligible inventory. Apio’s
revolving line of credit has an unused fee of 0% 7% er annum. At August 26, 2012 and May 27, 2@}#o had $7.5 million and $11.7 million,
respectively, outstanding under its revolving laferedit.

Apio’s obligations under the the GE Capital redahtss equipment and line of credit agreementséctllely the “GE Debt Agreements”) are
secured by liens on all of the property of Apio d@sdsubsidiaries. The GE Debt Agreements cordagtomary events of default under which
obligations could be accelerated or increased. Qe apital real estate and equipment loans anagteed by Landec and Landec has pledged its
equity interest in Apio as collateral under theslof credit agreement. The GE Debt Agreementsafiloeustomary covenants, such as limitations on
the ability to (1) incur indebtedness or grantdiem negative pledges on Apsoassets; (2) make loans or other investmentg@a@ylividends, sell sto
or repurchase stock or other securities; (4) sskees; (5) engage in mergers; (6) enter into saldemseback transactionss; and (7) make changes in
Apio’s corporate structure. In addition, Apio mustintain a minimum fixed charge coverage ratid.dab to 1.0. Apio was in compliance with all
financial covenants as of August 26, 2012. Unainedtloan origination fees for the GE Debt Agreetaavere $1.3 million at both August 26, 2012
and May 27, 2012, respectively, and are includeatter assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or iffiates (“‘BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

1) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Creilireement”) which includes (a) a one-year, $8.0ioni asset-based working capital revolving
line of credit, with an interest rate of LIBOR plis85%, with availability based on the combinatifriifecore’s eligible accounts receivable
and inventory balances and with no unused fee (guat 26, 2012 and May 27, 2012, no amounts wetgtanding under the line of credit)
and (b) a $12.0 million term loan which mature$omar years due in monthly payments of $250,000 witarest payable monthly based on a
variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 2% (the “Teloan”).

2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to wBRIO Harris caused its affiliate, Bank of Montretl,issue an irrevocable letter of credit in
the amount of $3.5 million (the “Letter of Creditfhich is securing the IRBs described below.

Lifecore’s obligations under the Lifecore Loan Agmgents are secured by liens on all of the propdrhyfecore. The Lifecore Loan
Agreements contain customary covenants, such #@stioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesgmnt liens or negative pledges on Lifecore’s
assets; (2) make loans or other investments; BYipadends or repurchase stock or other securifissell assets; (5) engage in mergers; (6) énte
sale and leaseback transactions; (7) adopt cdreaigfit plans; and (8) make changes in Lifecoreiparate structure. In addition, under the Credit
Agreement, Lifecore must maintain (a) a minimuneébcharge coverage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 and a mimrquick ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of which
must be satisfied as of the end of each fiscaltguaommencing with the fiscal quarter ending Aud& 2012 and (b) a minimum tangible net worth
of $29,000,000, measured as of May 28, 2013, amd e end of each fiscal year thereafter. Lifecmas in compliance with all financial covenants
as of August 26, 2012. Unamortized loan origimafiees for the Lifecore Loan Agreements were $1@88#hd $139,000 as of August 26, 2012 and
May 27, 2012, respectively, and are included ireptssets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Term Loan was used to repay Lifecore’s formedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“WellBargo”). The Letter of Credit (which
replaces a letter of credit previously providedidglls Fargo) provides liquidity and credit suppiort the IRBs.

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued IRBs. ThedgslRere assumed by Landec in the acquisition afddfe (see Note 2). The IRBs are
collateralized by a bank letter of credit whiclsécured by a first mortgage on the Company’s fgditi Chaska, Minnesota. In addition, the Company
pays an annual remarketing fee equal to 0.125% and an atettex of credit fee of 0.75%. The maturitiestbe IRBs are held in a sinking fund
account, recorded in Other Current Assets in ticerapanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, and atleopéieach year on Septembet.1

11. Derivative Financial Instruments

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yagerest rate swap agreement which expires on A0riR015, under its prior credit
agreement with Wells Fargo. The interest rate swap designated as a cash flow hedge of futureeisitpayments of LIBOR and had a notional
amount of $20 million. As a result of the intereste swap transaction, the Company fixed for aigar period the interest rate at 4.24% subject to
market based interest rate risk on $20 millionafrbwings under the prior credit agreement with M/Ehrgo. The Company’s obligations under the
interest rate swap transaction as to the scheghalgchents were guaranteed and secured on the saiseabdts obligations under the credit agreement
with Wells Fargo at the time the agreement waswmmsated. As mentioned in Note 10, upon enteritg the new Term Loan with BMO Harris, the
Company used the proceeds from that loan to pathefftVells Fargo credit facility. The swap with Mgd=argo was not terminated upon the
extinguishment of the debt with Wells Fargo. A®sult of extinguishing the debt with Wells Fargood May 23, 2012, the swap was no longer an
effective hedge and therefore, the fair value efdivap at the time the debt was extinguished of 80 was reversed from other comprehensive
income and recorded in other expense during figeat 2012. The fair value of the swap arrangerasmif August 26, 2012 and May 27, 2012 was
$305,000 and $347,000, respectively, and is indudether non-current liabilities in the accompiagybalance sheet. The change in the fair value of
the swap of $42,000 during the three months endegust 26, 2012 is recorded in other income in twwmpanying income statement.

12. Related Party

The Company provides cooling and distribution sesito both a farm and Beachside Produce LLC ("Bsde"), a commodity produce
distributor, in which the Chairman of Apio has anfiitng and ownership interest, respectively. Dgitime three months ended August 26, 2012 and
August 28, 2011, the Company recognized revenu4.6fmillion and $1.1 million, respectively, whibave been included in product sales and in
service revenues in the accompanying Consolidatizte@ents of Income, from the sale of products@ngiding cooling services to these
parties. The related receivable balances of $288s0d $323,000 are included in accounts receivalilee accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of August 26, 2012 and May 27, 2012¢ctisply.
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Additionally, unrelated to the revenue transactiabeve, the Company purchases produce from Beaglesidrm in which the Chairman of
Apio has an ownership interest, and Windset foz sakhird parties. During the three months endadust 26, 2012 and August 28, 2011, the
Company recognized cost of product sales of $2lBomiand $1.3 million, respectively, which havespencluded in cost of product sales in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Incoma) fhe sale of products purchased from these parfibe related accounts payable of $533,000
and $776,000 are included in related party accquengable in the accompanying Consolidated Balahe®tS as of August 26, 2012 and May 27,
2012, respectively.

All related party transactions are monitored quértey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteribf the Board of Directors.
13. Stockholders’ Equity
During the three months ended August 26, 2012Ctmapany did not grant any options or restrictedlstmit awards.

As of August 26, 2012 the Company has reservednllibn shares of Common Stock for future issuauander its current and former equity
plans.

On July 14, 2010, the Company announced that tteedBaf Directors of the Company had approved th@xdishment of a stock repurchase
plan authorizing the repurchase of up to $10 mmillid the Company’s Common Stock. The Company repyrchase its common stock from time to
time in open market purchases or in privately nie¢ed transactions. The timing and actual numbshares repurchased is at the discretion of
management of the Company and will depend on &tyaoif factors, including stock price, corporatel aegulatory requirements, market conditions,
the relative attractiveness of other capital delent opportunities and other corporate prioriti€ae stock repurchase program does not obligate
Landec to acquire any amount of its common stocktha program may be modified, suspended or tetetnat any time at the Company's discretion
without prior notice. During the three months eshdeigust 26, 2012, the Company did not purchaseshayes on the open market.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity (in thousands, except share amounts)
August 26, 201
Common Stock Shares

Balance at May 27, 2012 25,644,58
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 54,15¢
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares testter 11,24¢
Balance at August 26, 2012 25,709,98

Common Stock

Balance at May 27, 2012 $ 26
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered —
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares texttder —

Balance at August 26, 2012 $ 26

Additional Paid-in Capital

Balance at May 27, 2012 $ 119,89:
Stock options exercised, net of shares tendered 202
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares tesuder —
Taxes paid by Company for RSUs vested (49
Stock-based compensation expense 34¢
Tax-benefit from stock based compensation expense 50t
Common stock repurchased on the open market —
Balance at August 26, 2012 $ 120,90(
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Retained Earnings

Balance at May 27, 2012 $ 29,82:
Net income 2,53¢
Balance at August 26, 2012 $ 32,36

Non controlling Interest

Balance at May 27, 2012 $ 1,81¢

Non controlling interest in net incon 97

Distributions to non controlling interest -

Balance at August 26, 2012 $ 1,91%
14. Business Segment Reporting

The Company manages its business operations thitbueg strategic business units. Based upon theniation reported to the chief
operating decision maker, who is the Chief Exeeu@ificer, the Company has the following reporta@gments : the Food Products Technology
segment, the Food Export segment and the Hyalurbaaed Biomaterials segment.

The Food Products Technology segment markets atid paecialty packaged whole and fresthvegetables that incorporate the Breathe
specialty packaging for the retail grocery, clutrstand food services industry. In addition, tbed-Products Technology segment sells BreatheWay
packaging to partners for non-vegetable produtte Food Export segment consists of revenues gewkfrmm the purchase and sale of primarily
whole commodity fruit and vegetable products toafaind domestically. The HA-based Biomaterials segmsells products utilizing hyaluronan, a
naturally occurring polysaccharide that is wideistidbuted in the extracellular matrix of conneetitissues in both animals and humans, for medical
use primarily in the Ophthalmic, Orthopedic andérfetary markets. As a result of the sale of Lanéigéo INCOTEC and the termination of the
Monsanto Agreement in fiscal year 2012, the Comgaag/eliminated the Technology Licensing segmedtcambined the results of that business
the Corporate segment. As a result of this chathgesegment information for the three months erlgglist 28, 2011 has been reclassified to con
with the current year classification. Corporatetises Landec’s patented Intellicoat seed coatinge farming industry and licenses the Company’s
Intelimer polymers for personal care products ath@oindustrial products. Corporate also inclugleseral and administrative expenses, non Food
Products Technology and non HA-based Biomaternséyést income and Company-wide income tax experBeginning in the first quarter of fiscal
year 2013, the Food Products Technology, the FopaiE and the Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials segsnantude charges for corporate services and
tax sharing allocated from the Corporate segmAtitof the assets of the Company are located withenUnited States of America. The Company’s
international sales were as follows (in millions):

Three Months Ended
August 26, 2012 August 28, 2011

Taiwan $ 12¢ $ 9.4
Indonesia $ 6.1 $ 74
Canada $ 6.2 $ 5.2
Japan $ 31 % 2t
Belgium $ 3C % 1.¢
All Other Countries $ 5C % 3.7
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Operations and identifiable assets by business eeigoonsisted of the following (in thousands):

Food
Products HA-basec

Three Months Ended August 26, 2012 Technology Food Expor Biomaterial: Corporate TOTAL
Net sales $ 6863 $ 25,35¢ $ 797: % 11z $ 102,07
International sales $ 6,220 $ 25,31. $ 4,80z $ O $ 36,33
Gross profit $ 9,94: $ 1,34: $ 2,36¢ $ 11z $ 13,76
Net income (loss $ 3,741 $ 30¢ $ (Bl (1,199 ¢ 2,53¢
Depreciation and amortization $ 1,23¢ $ 193 582 $ 3€ $ 1,85¢
Dividend Income $ 281 $ — $ — $ — % 281
Interest income $ 1% — $ 25 $ — $ 2¢
Interest expense $ 458 $ — $ 8€ $ — $ 541
Income tax expense $ 1247 $ 10z % (109 $ 24€ % 1,49;
Three Months Ended August 28, 2011

Net sales $ 4336: $ 21,35 $ 7,121 $ 1,462 $ 73,30:
International sales $ 5071 $ 21,31 $ 3,76¢ $ 0o $ 3014
Gross profit $ 6,05¢ $ 1,012 $ 2,71 $ 1462 $§ 11,25
Net income (loss $ 3,35¢ $ 297 $ 46z $ (2,309 $ 1,81:
Depreciation and amortization $ 78C $ 2 % 52¢ $ 45 $ 1,35¢
Dividend Income $ 281 $ — $ — $ — 281
Interest income $ 8 3 — % 47 $ 21 $ 7€
Interest expense $ — $ — $ 17€¢ $ — % 17¢
Income tax expense $ — 3 — % — 3 1,11C $ 1,11¢

During the three months ended August 26, 2012 arglist 28, 2011, sales to the Company'’s top fivéorners accounted for 36% and 43%,
respectively, of revenues with the Company’s togtamer from the Food Products Technology segmerduating for 12% and 16% for the three
months ended August 26, 2012 and August 28, 2@kpectively. The Company expects that, for thedeeable future, a limited number of custor
may continue to account for a significant portidrit® net revenues.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of f@ncial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjigrctvith the unaudited consolidated financial stegats and accompanying notes included
in Part I-ltem 1 of this Form 10-Q and the auditedsolidated financial statements and accompanyatgs and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems included in Landec’s Annual Report on FofrKlfor the fiscal year ended May 27, 2012.

Except for the historical information containeddiar the matters discussed in this report are faw@oking statements within the meaninc
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 19Bdese forward-looking statements involve certaks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those in the famdlooking statements. Potential risks and unceiiggrinclude, without limitation, those mentione:
this Form 10-Q and those mentioned in Landec’s AhReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended/Md, 2012. Landec undertakes no
obligation to update or revise any forward-looksigtements in order to reflect events or circuntdarthat may arise after the date of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

There have been no material changes to the Congperitytal accounting policies which are includeu alescribed in the Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended May 27, 2012 filed with the Sémg and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2012.

The Company

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landecthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aibpolymer products for food and
agricultural products, medical devices and licernsainer applications that incorporate Landec’sipi@d polymer technologies. The Company has
two proprietary polymer technology platforms: f)dlimer® polymers, and 2) Hyaluronan (“HA”) biogaters. The Company’s polymer
technologies, along with its customer relationskgipd trade names, are the foundation, and a kégrefitiating advantage, upon which Landec has
built its business.

Landec has three core businesses — Food Produtdieadlegy, Food Export and HA-based Biomaterialseheof which is described below.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Apio, operates our &&voducts Technology business, combining Landadprietary food packaging
technology with the capabilities of a large natidoad supplier and value-added produce processpApio’s value-added operations, produce is
processed by trimming, washing, mixing, and paakggnito bags and trays that incorporate LandectareWay® membrane technology. The
BreatheWay membrane increases shelf life and redslognk (waste) for retailers and, for certaindarcts, eliminates the need for ice during the
distribution cycle and helps to ensure that consamezeive fresh produce by the time the produdte®iéts way through the supply chain. Apio also
licenses the BreatheWay technology to ChigquBeands International, Inc. (“Chiquita”) for packagiand distribution of bananas and avocados and to
Windset Farms for packaging of greenhouse grownmbers, peppers and tomatoes.

Apio also operates the Food Export business thrisdbal Ex Trading Company (“Cal-Ex”). The Expbusiness purchases and sells whole
fruit and vegetable products to predominantly Asizarkets.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Lifecore, operates Hé-based Biomaterials business and is principalplved in the development and
manufacture of products utilizing hyaluronan, aunaity occurring polysaccharide that is widely distited in the extracellular matrix of connective
tissues in both animals and humans. Lifecore’slypets are primarily sold to three medical segmeagsOphthalmic, (2) Orthopedic and (3)
Veterinary. Lifecore also supplies hyaluronanustomers pursuing other medical applications, stschesthetic surgery, medical device coatings,
tissue engineering and pharmaceuticals. Lifearerhges its fermentation process to manufactemipm, pharmaceutical-grade hyaluronan, and its
aseptic filling capabilities to deliver HA finishegbods to its customers. Lifecore also manufastarel sells its own HA-based finished goods on a
private label basis through third parties. Lifect recognized in the medical segments as a premsigplier of HA. Its name recognition allows
Lifecore to acquire new customers and sell new getsdwith a modest marketing and sales investment.

Landec also develops proprietary polymer technelogind applies them in a wide range of applicafiocisiding seed coatings and
treatments, temperature indicators, controlledasgesystems, drug delivery, pressure sensitivesaaiseand personal care products. These
applications are commercialized through partnesshiiph third parties resulting in licensing and atty revenues. For example, Air Products and
Chemicals, Inc. (“Air Products”) has an exclusiieehse to our Intelimer polymers for personal gamalucts and Nitta Corporation (“Nitta”) licenses
Landec’s proprietary pressure sensitive adhesimesde in the manufacture of electronic componkeytheir customers.
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Landec was incorporated on October 31, 1986. Wiptzted our initial public offering in 1996 and ddommon Stock is listed on The
NASDAQ Global Select Market under the sym“LNDC.” Our principal executive offices are locatat3603 Haven Avenue, Menlo Park, California
94025 and our telephone number is (650) 306-1650.

Description of Core Business

Landec participates in three core business segméizd Products Technology, Food Export and Hyelan-based Biomaterials.

Landec Corporation

Proprietary Polymer Science Technology

Fa_:rzihpnr;i;?s Food Export H4-based Biomaterials

Food Products Technology Business

The Company began marketing its proprietary Intefilnased BreatheWay® membranes in 1996 for udeeifrésh-cut produce packaging
market, historically one of the fastest growingreegts in the produce industry. Landec’s proprieBreatheWay packaging technology when
combined with fresh-cut or whole produce resultpackaged produce with increased shelf life andeed shrink (waste) without the need for ice
during the distribution cycle. The resulting protiuare referred to as “value-added” products.iriguthe fiscal year ended May 27, 2012, Apio
shipped nearly sixteen million cartons of produzéetiding supermarket retailers, wholesalers, fedise suppliers and club stores throughout the
United States and internationally, primarily in @da.

There are four major distinguishing characteristitdpio that provide competitive advantages infe®d Products Technology market:

Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketeselhel of fresh-cut and whole value-added produtes focused on
selling products under its Eat Smart and Greenbiaads and private label brands for its fresh-oadt\@hole value-added products. As
retail grocery chains, club stores and food sergerators consolidate, Apio is well positionediasngle source of a broad range of
products.

Reduced Farming Risks: Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking owstep of farmland, and instead, contracts with gneser produce
and selectively enters into joint ventures withvgeos for produce. The year-round sourcing of poeds a key component to the fresh-
cut and whole value-added processing business.

Lower Cost Structure: Apio has strategically invested in the rapidly giogvfresh-cut and whole value-added business. '41i86,000
square foot value-added processing plant in GuadaldA, is automated with state-of-the-art vegetaobcessing equipment. A large
majority of Apio’s value-added products utilize Afs proprietary BreatheWay packaginggchnology. Apio’s strategy is to operate one
large central processing facility in one of the éstvcost growing regions in California, the Santari&l Valley, for the majority of its non-
green bean vegetable business, use its packagingalegy for nationwide delivery and use its Easa§l facilities acquired with the
acquisition of GreenLine for green bean procesaimijto meet the “next day delivery” needs of cugtianfor its historical value-added,
fresh-cut products.

Expanded Product Line Using TechnologyApio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagitgghnology, is introducing new valaeldec
products each year. These new product offeringgerdrom various sizes of fresh-cut bagged prodtteegetable trays, to whole
produce, to vegetable salads and snack packsndpihé last twelve months, Apio, excluding the prctd acquired in the acquisition of
GreenLine, has introduced six new products.
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Apio established its Apio Packaging division in 806 advance the sales of BreatheWay packagingodatyy for shelf-life sensitive
vegetables and fruit. The Company’s specialty pgicigafor case liner products extends the shelfdifeertain produce commodities up to 50%. This
shelf life extension can enable the utilizatiorattérnative distribution strategies to gain effigeges or reach new markets while maintaining produc
quality to the end customer.

Apio Packaging’s first program has concentrated@manas and was formally consummated when Apigeghteto an agreement to supply
Chiquita with its proprietary banana packaging tedbgy. This global agreement applies to the ripgnconservation and shelf-life extension of
bananas. In addition, Apio provides Chiquita vatigoing research and development and process tedysupport for the BreatheWay membranes
and bags, and technical service support througiheutustomer chain in order to assist in the dgretnt and market acceptance of the technology.

Chiquita provides marketing, distribution and riesaies support for Chiquita® bananas sold worléwidBreatheWay packaging. To
maintain the exclusive license, Chiquita must ngeetrterly minimum purchase thresholds of BreatheWaana packages.

In fiscal year 2008, the Company expanded the fige BreatheWay technology to include avocadosmadgos under an expanded licen
agreement with Chiquita. Commercial sales of asosgackaged in LandecBreatheWay packaging into the food service ingiustgan late in fisci
year 2008 and commercial retail sales began ialfd@10. Chiquita is currently evaluating the fetof its avocado program due to sourcing and
operational issues not related to the Company’atBeVay technology.

In June 2008, Apio entered into a collaboratioreagrent with Seminis Vegetable Seeds, Inc., a wimllged subsidiary of Monsanto
Company (“Monsanto”), to develop novel broccoli arailiflower products for the exclusive sale by @&pi the North American market. These novel
products are packaged in Landec’s proprietary Bed&fay packaging and a commercial sales agreemean¢ntared into on June 12, 2012 and sales
have recently started under Monsanto’s Beneforte®dbto retail grocery and Club store chains.

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieeagreement with Windset for Windset to utilize tao’'s proprietary breathable packaging
to extend the shelf life of greenhouse grown cuaensitpeppers and tomatoes. Commercial sales ald#ircucumbers in BreatheWay packaging are
projected to begin in fiscal year 2013.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharetage agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) wittdgéin Pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 senior prefeshedes for $15 million and 201 common shares fod%the “Purchased Shares”). The Company’
common shares represent a 20.1% interest in Wind$et non-voting senior preferred shares yieldshaividend of 7.5% annually. The dividend is
payable within 90 days of each anniversary of thexation of the Purchase Agreement. The Purchaseeftent includes a put and call option, which
can be exercised on the sixth anniversary of theHaise Agreement whereby Apio can exercise théopell its Purchased Shares to Windset, or
Windset can exercise the call to purchase the RaethShares from Apio, in either case, at a poaldgo 20.1% of the appreciation in the fair marke
value of Windset from the date of the Company’sstment through the put/call date, plus the pueipaise of the Purchased Sharddnder the
terms of the arrangement with Windset, the Compsaueytitled to designate one of five members orBbard of Directors of Windset.

Food Export Business

Food Export revenues consist of revenues genefiaedthe purchase and sale of primarily whole comitydfruit and vegetable products to
Asia through Apio’s export company, Cal-Ex. TheoBdExport business is a buy/sell business thaizesah commission-based margin on average in
the 5-8% range.

Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials Business

Our HA-based Biomaterials business, operated thraug Lifecore subsidiary, was acquired by Lande@pril 30, 2010.
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Lifecore uses its fermentation process and asépticulation and filling expertise to be a leadethe development of HA-based products for
multiple applications and to take advantage of Ridndevice and drug opportunities which leverageekpertise in manufacturing and aseptic syringe
filling capabilities. Elements of Lifecore’s stegty include the following:

° Establish strategic relationships with market leesde Lifecore will continue to develop applications fwroducts with partners who
have strong marketing, sales and distribution citifieb to end-user markets. Through its strongutation and history of providing premium HA
products, Lifecore has been able to establish teng-relationships with market leading companiehsas Alcon, Inc. (Alcon) and others in
ophthalmology, and Musculoskeletal Transplant Fatiod (MTF) and Novartis AG in orthopedics.

° Expand medical applications for HADue to the growing knowledge of the unique cbinastics of HA and the role it plays in
normal physiology, Lifecore continues to identifydgpursue further uses for HA in other medical &gilons, such as wound care, aesthetic surgery,
adhesion prevention, drug delivery, device coatengs pharmaceuticals. Further applications maylirevexpanding process development activity
and/or additional licensing of technology.

° License HA technology from third partiesn 2007, Lifecore entered into a wonldde exclusive license and development agree
with The Cleveland Clinic Foundation to develop anedmercialize Corgel™ Biohydrogel using patentéditvised cross-linking technology that can
be used for products in aesthetics, orthopedidsthafmology and other medical fields. Lifecore hasyet developed any commercial products for
this technology.

° Utilize manufacturing infrastructure to pursue catt aseptic filling and fermentation opportunitiésfecore continues to evaluate
providing contract services for opportunities theg suited for the capital and facility investmeziaited to aseptic filling equipment, fermentatéord
purification.

° Maintain flexibility in product development and plyprelationships. Lifecore’s vertically integrated development and
manufacturing capabilities allow it to establishaaiety of relationships with global corporate pars. Lifecore’s role in these relationships extend
from supplying HA raw materials to manufacturingaseptically-packaged, finished sterile productdeteeloping and manufacturing its own
proprietary products.

Other Non-Core Businesses
Seeds Business — Intellicoat Seed Coatings anddcafid

Landec's Intellicoat seed coating applicationsdasgned to control seed germination timing, inseeerop yields, reduce risks and extend
crop-planting windows. These coatings are curresntyilable on male inbred corn used for seed priotuc In fiscal year 2000, Landec Ag launched
Pollinator Plus® coatings, which is a coating application used Bdssompanies as a method for spreading pollinatidgncrease yields and reduce
risk in the production of hybrid seed corn. In 2pPollinator Plus was used by eight seed compameasaore than 20% of the seed corn production
acres in the U.S. This business was sold to INCOH&Iding North America, Inc. (“INCOTEC”) on Jund, 2012 (see Note 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements).

Nor-Seed Business

The Company believes its technology has commepaintial in a wide range of industrial, consumeat enedical applications beyond those
identified in our other segments. For example,caue patented technology, Intelimer materials, lmanised to trigger release of catalysts, inseletci
or fragrances just by changing the temperaturbefritelimer materials or to activate adhesivesuh controlled temperature change. In order to
exploit these opportunities, we have entered inthwill enter into licensing and collaborative corate agreements for product development and/or
distribution in certain fields. However, given timrequency and unpredictability of when the Compenay enter into any such licensing and rese
and development arrangements, the Company is ut@bisclose its financial expectations in advaoicentering into such arrangements.

Industrial Materials and Adhesivt
Landec’s industrial product development strategues on coatings, catalysts, resins, additivesadhdsives in the polymer materials

market. During the product development stageCiipany identifies corporate partners to supperotigoing development and testing of these
products, with the ultimate goal of licensing thpplcations at the appropriate time.
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Intelimer Latent Catalyst Polymer Syste

Landec has developed latent catalysts useful ienebimg pot-life, extending shelf life, reducing weaand improving thermoset cure
methods. Some of these latent catalysts are dlyrtezing distributed by Akzo-Nobel Chemicals Bpursuant to our licensing agreement with Air
Products. The rights to develop and sell Landiatént catalysts and personal care technologies lieemsed to Air Products in March 2006.

Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicatioagegly is focused on supplying Intelimer materialfdustry leaders for use in lotions and
creams, as well as color cosmetics, lipsticks aiddare. The Company's partner, Air Productsuisently shipping products to L'Oreal,
Mentholatum, Louis Widmer, Aris Cosmetics and ott@mpanies for use in lotions and creams. Thegsighdevelop and sell Landec’s polymers for
personal care products were licensed to Air Pradinciarch 2006 along with the latent catalyst tighThe Company’s Intelimer polymers are
currently in over 50 personal care products wortibyi
Results of Operations

Revenuegin thousands):

Three months Three months
ended 8/26/1. ended 8/28/1 Change

Apio Value Added $ 68,14« $ 42,81¢ 59%
Apio Packaging 487 54E (11%)
Food Technology 68,631 43,36 58%
Apio Export 25,35¢ 21,35t 19%
Total Apio 93,98¢ 64,71¢ 45%
HA 7,97: 7,121 12%
Corporate 112 1,462 (92%)
Total Revenues $ 102,07: $ 73,30: 39%

Apio Value Added

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of revenuesrgéed from the sale of specialty packaged freslaed whole value-added processed
vegetable products that are washed and packagrd jroprietary packaging and sold under Apio’s &atart and GreenLine brands and various
private labels. In addition, valuedded revenues include the revenues generateddpanCooling, LP, a vegetable cooling operatiominich Apio is
the general partner with a 60% ownership position.

The increase in Apio’s value-added revenues fottitee months ended August 26, 2012 compared thirthejuarter of last year was
primarily due to the following factors: (1) $19.9llion of revenues from GreenLine which was acadios April 23, 2012 and (2) a 22% increase in
unit volume sales to existing non green bean custemesulting primarily from expanded product dffgs, gaining additional distribution locations
and growth in the fresh-cut vegetable categoryesehncreases in revenue were partially offset pgoeluct mix change in retail grocery chains to
lower priced products from higher priced products.

Apio Packaging

Apio packaging revenues consist of Apio’s packageannology business using its BreatheWay memhenieology. The first commercial
application included in Apio packaging is our bam@@ackaging technology.

The decrease in Apio packaging revenues for treethronths ended August 26, 2012 compared to the pariod last year was not
significant.

Apio Export

Apio export revenues consist of revenues genefadatthe purchase and sale of primarily whole corditydfruit and vegetable products to
Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revenue equal todake price to third parties because it takesttitldhe product while in transit.
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The increase in revenues in Apio’s export busifesthe three months ended August 26, 2012 compardte same period last year was due
to a 3% increase in unit volume sales and morerédolte pricing for export products during the figstarter of fiscal year 2013 compared to the same
period last year.

Hyaluronan-based (“HA”) Biomaterials
Lifecore principally generates revenue throughshle of products containing HA. Lifecore primasklls products to customers in three

medical areas: (1) Ophthalmic, which representgulagmately 65% of Lifecore’s revenues in fiscay012, (2) Orthopedic, which represented
approximately 20% of Lifecore’s revenues in fisgahr 2012 and (3) Veterinary/Other.

The increase in Lifecore’s revenues for the threatims ended August 26, 2012 compared to the sarepast year was due to a 15%
increase in revenues in Lifecore’s aseptic fillmginess and an 8% increase in revenues in Lifescfenentation business, primarily for Ophthalmic
products.

Corporate

Corporate revenues consist of revenues generatedtire licensing agreements with Air Products aitthN

The decrease in Corporate revenues for the thre¢h:iended August 28, 2011 compared to the sanwdperthe prior year was due to the
termination of the Monsanto Agreement at the entthefsecond quarter of fiscal year 2012. The eugrtevenues and gross profit for Corporate from
Monsanto had been $1.35 million per quarter pache termination.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Threemonths Three months
ended 8/26/12 ended 8/28/11 Change

Apio Value Added $ 9,49¢ $ 5,65¢ 68%
Apio Packaging 444 404 10%
Food Technology 9,94: 6,05¢ 64%
Apio Export 1,34 1,014 32%
Total Apio 11,28¢ 7,07: 60%
HA 2,36¢ 2,71¢ (13%)
Corporate 112 1,462 (92%)
Total Gross Profit $ 13,76: $ 11,25( 22%
General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnad# including product mix, customer mix, manctiaring costs, volume, sale discounts
and charges for excess or obsolete inventory, ieereafew. Many of these factors influence or aterrelated with other factors. The Company
includes in cost of sales all of the costs relatetthe sale of products in accordance with U.Segaly accepted accounting principles. These costs
include the following: raw materials (including plece, casein, seeds and packaging), direct laberhead (including indirect labor, depreciationd an
facility related costs) and shipping and shippia@ted costs. The following are the primary reador the changes in gross profit for the threating
ended August 26, 2012 compared to the same pexsvgéear as outlined in the table above.

Apio Value-Added

The increase in gross profit for Apio’s value-addedetable business for the three months ended A1 2012 compared to the same
period last year was primarily due to the 59% imseein revenues coupled with a small favorableysbrhix change.

Apio Packaging

The increase in Apio packaging gross profit fortttee months ended August 26, 2012 compared teatime period last year was not
significant.
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Apio Export

Apio’s export business is a buy/sell business ithalizes a commission-based margin in the 5-8%erafidne increase in gross profit for
Apio’s export business during the three months dmleyust 26, 2012 compared to the same periog/é&stwas due to the 19% increase in
revenues. The 19% increase in revenues was Idaarthe growth in gross profit because of favorgideluct mix changes to higher margin products
which resulted in a higher gross margin duringfitet quarter of fiscal year 2013 of 5.3% compat@d gross margin of 4.7% during the first quarter
of fiscal year 2012.

HA-based Biomaterials

The decrease in gross profit during the three nwatfded August 26, 2012 compared to the same gesbgear was due to the timing of
production within the fiscal year resulting in lon@verhead absorption. Although there was a 12%g#se in revenues, lower overhead absorption
resulted in a lower gross margin during the firsager of fiscal year 2013 of 30% compared to agroargin of 38% during the first quarter of fiscal
year 2012.

Corporate

The decrease in Corporate gross profit for theetimenths ended August 26, 2012 compared to the parnta of the prior year was due to
the termination of the Monsanto Agreement at thib@frthe second quarter of fiscal year 2012. Tierigrly revenues and gross profit for Corporate
from Monsanto had been $1.35 million per quartérgo the termination.

Operating Expensegin thousands):

Threemonths Three months
ended 8/26/12  ended 8/28/11 Change

Research and Devel opment:

Apio $ 328 ¢ 27C 21%
HA 1,14¢ 1,08¢ 6%
Corporate 727 977 (26%)

Total R&D $ 2,20¢ 2,33 (6%)

Selling, General and Administrative:

Apio $ 5,48t $ 3,35( 64%
HA 1,27z 994 28%
Corporate 1,79¢ 1,70( 6%

Total S,G&A $ 8,55¢ $ 6,04< 42%

Research and Development

Landec’s research and development expenses consistrily of expenses involved in product developitrend commercialization

initiatives. Research and development effortsg@b/re focused on the Company’s proprietary BeAthy membranes used for packaging produce,
with recent focus on extending the shelf life ofaas and other shelf-life sensitive vegetabledraiitd In the HA business, the research and
development efforts are focused on new productsagptications for HA-based biomaterials. In Cogier the research and development efforts are
focused on uses for the proprietary Intelimer pa@ysroutside of food and HA.

The decrease in research and development expengbs three months ended August 26, 2012 compartee same period last year was primarily
due to the sale of Landec Ag to INCOTEC which rextlithe research and development expenses in Ctepora

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (“S,G&A”) exges consist primarily of sales and marketing expeassociated with Landec’s product
sales and services, business development expem$esadf and administrative expenses.
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The increase in S,G&A expenses for the three moended August 26, 2012 compared to the same plasogiear was primarily due to the
following factors: (1) $1.3 million of S,G&A expees at GreenLine which was acquired on April 23,2@2) an $800,000 increase in SG&A at Apio,
excluding GreenLine, due to the amortization o ¢thistomer base intangible acquired in the acérisitf GreenLine, an increase in salary and bonus
expenses and additional sales and marketing expasseciated with the increase in revenues, (2Y8,800 increase at Lifecore due to the timing of
the recognition of certain S,G&A expenses withie fiscal year and (4) a $170,000 increase at Catpatue to increased accounting fees.

Other (in thousands):

Threemonths  Three months
ended 8/26/12  ended 8/28/11 Change

Dividend I ncome $ 281 $ 281 —
I nterest Income $ 26 $ 76 (66%)
Interest Expense $ (541 $ (17¢) 207%
Other Income (Expense) $ 1,35¢ $ 9 N/M
Income Taxes $ (1,497 $ (1,110 34%
Non controlling interest $ 97 9 (141 (31%)

Dividend Income

Dividend income is derived from the dividends aecton our $15 million preferred stock investmeniMimdset which yields a cash dividend
of 7.5% annually. There was no change in divideedme for the three months ended August 26, 2@t@ared to the same period last year.

Interest Income

The decrease in interest income for the three nsogrtded August 26, 2012 compared to the same pasbgear was primarily due to lower
cash balances reflecting our use of cash to buyblaakes of the Company’s common stock during figeal 2012 and to purchase GreenLine.

Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense during the th@&hs ended August 26, 2012 compared to the sanwpast year was due to interest on
the debt incurred in the acquisition of GreenLifdis increase was partially offset by decreaséstarest expenses at Lifecore due to paying dasvn i
debt by $4.1 million since the end of the first qanof fiscal year 2012.

Other Income (Expense)
The increase in other income is due to the $1ldomincrease in the fair market value of our Wéetlinvestment.

Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense is du8&/aincrease in net income before taxes duringhtte® months ended August 26, 2012
compared to the same period last year.

Non controlling Interest
The non controlling interest consists of the lidifgartners’ equity interest in the net income ofcA@ooling, LP.

The decrease in the non controlling interest ferttiree months ended August 26, 2012 comparecktfirtth quarter of last year was not
significant.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of August 26, 2012, the Company had cash anll egsivalents of $10.0 million, a net decreasel®.$ million from $22.2 million at Me
27, 2012.
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Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $5.1 million of cash from opegadictivities during the three months ended Aug6s2P12, compared to $4.4 million for
the three months ended August 28, 2011. The pyiswurces of cash from operating activities dutlmgthree months ended August 26, 2012 were
from (1) generating $2.6 million of net income, §1).9 million of depreciation and amortization, dB)a net decrease of $861,000 in working capital,
excluding the decrease in income taxes receivahlehnis offset by the tax benefit from stock-basedthpensation. The primary factors which
decreased working capital during the first quasfdiscal year 2013 were (a) a $1.7 million deceeswsreceivables primarily due to the timing of
receipts at Lifecore and (b) a $4.1 million incee@&saccounts payable resulting from the timing@yments at Apio. The primary factors which
increased working capital during the first quadgfiscal year 2013 were (a) a $1.5 million incre@s inventories at Apio as a result of building
inventory for a projected increase in revenuesa($}].8 million decrease in accrued compensati@rasult of paying bonuses earned in fiscal year
2012 during the first quarter of fiscal year 2048 (c) a $1.4 million decrease in other accruedillities at Apio.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the thremths ended August 26, 2012 was $2.8 million cmeqb to $5.5 million for the same per
last year. The primary uses of cash in investitiyities during the first quarter of fiscal yeadd13B were for the purchase of $2.0 million of equémmn
primarily to support the growth of Apio value-addadd the Lifecore businesses, and from the purobfa$@56,000 of marketable securities.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the thmeenths ended August 26, 2012 was $14.4 millionmamed to net cash provided by financ
activities of $298,000 for the same period lastryéhe net cash used in financing activities dytime first quarter of fiscal year 2013 was priryari
due to the $10 million earn out payment from thie¢dre acquisition, $9.7 million of which was reded as a contingent liability at the time of the
acquisition and is therefore classified as a fifragectivity, and $5.6 million of payments on ther@pany’s lines of credit and long-term debt.

Capital Expenditures

During the three months ended August 26, 2012, eampdirchased equipment to support the growth ob Aplue-added and the Lifecore
businesses, These expenditures represented joetynaf the $2.0 million of capital expenditures.

Debt

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratristrial revenue bonds (“IRBs”). These IRBs wassumed by Landec in the acquisition
of Lifecore. The IRBs are collateralized by a béatker of credit which is secured by a first madg on the Lifecore facility in Chaska, Minnesotia
addition, Lifecore pays an annual remarketing fpgaéto 0.125% and an annual letter of credit fie@ ©6%.

On April 23, 2012 in connection with the acquigitiof GreenLine, Apio entered into three loan agrestswith General Electric Capital
Corporation and/or its affiliates (“GE Capital"gallectively the “Apio Loan Agreements”):

1) A five-year, $25.0 million asset-based workaapital revolving line of credit, with an interegste of LIBOR plus 2%, with availability based
on the monthly combination of the eligible accousiseivable and inventory balances of Apio andutssidiaries. Apio’s revolving line of
credit has an unused fee of 0.375% per annum. uguét 26, 2012, Apio had $7.5 million outstandimgler its revolving line of credit.

2) A $12.7 million capital equipment loan which ton@s in seven years payable in monthly principal iaterest payments of $175,356 with
interest based on a fixed rate of 4.39% per annum.

3) A $19.1 million real estate loan, $1.2 milliohwhich is due on April 23, 2013 and the remainghaturing in ten years. The real estate loan

has a fifteen year amortization period due in migrphincipal and interest payments of $141,962 witlerest based on a fixed rate of 4.02%
per annum. The principal balance remaining aetictof the ten year term is due in one lump surivlan 1, 2022.
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The obligations of Apio and its subsidiaries aigsfrom the Apio Loan Agreements are secured byslemall of the property of Apio and its
subsidiaries. The Apio Loan Agreements contairiacuary events of default under which obligationaldde accelerated or increased. Landec is
guarantying all obligations of Apio and its subarigs to GE Capital under the loans describedansgs (2) and (3) above and has pledged its equity
interest in Apio as collateral under the loan diésct in (1) above. The Apio Loan Agreements contaistomary covenants, such as limitations on the
ability to (1) incur indebtedness or grant liensiegative pledges on Ap®assets; (2) make loans or other investmentgaByividends or repurcha
stock or other securities; (4) sell assets; (5agedgn mergers; (6) enter into sale and leaselankdactions; (7) adopt certain benefit plans; &)d (
make changes in Apio’s corporate structure. Iritaadd Apio must maintain a minimum fixed chargevecage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0. Apio was in
compliance with all financial covenants as of Aug&, 2012.

On May 23, 2012, Lifecore entered into two finagcagreements with BMO Harris Bank N.A. and/or iffiates (“‘BMO Harris”),
collectively (the “Lifecore Loan Agreements”):

Q) A Credit and Security Agreement (the “Credgréement”) which includes (a) a one-year, $8.0iomlasset-based working capital revolving
line of credit, with an interest rate of LIBOR plis85%, with availability based on the monthly camaltion of Lifecore’s eligible accounts
receivable and inventory balances and with no whiese (as of August 26, 2012, no amounts were andgtg under the line of credit) and
a $12.0 million term loan which matures in four ggedue in monthly payments of $250,000 with intepagyable monthly based on a variable
interest rate of LIBOR plus 2% (the “Term Loan”).

(2) A Reimbursement Agreement pursuant to whichBMarris caused its affiliate, Bank of Montrealjgssue an irrevocable letter of credit in
the amount of $3.5 million (the “Letter of Creditthich is securing the IRBs described above.

The obligations of Lifecore under the Lifecore Losgreements are secured by liens on all of thegntgf Lifecore. The Lifecore Loan
Agreements contain customary covenants, such éstioms on the ability to (1) incur indebtednesg@nt liens or negative pledges on Lifecore’s
assets; (2) make loans or other investments; (BYipédends or repurchase stock or other securif@®ssell assets; (5) engage in mergers; (6) eénte
sale and leaseback transactions; (7) adopt cdreaigfit plans; and (8) make changes in Lifecoreiparate structure. In addition, under the Credit
Agreement, Lifecore must maintain (a) a minimuneébcharge coverage ratio of 1.10 to 1.0 and a mimirquick ratio of 1.25 to 1.00, both of which
must be satisfied as of the end of each fiscaltguaommencing with the fiscal quarter ending Aud& 2012 and (b) a minimum tangible net worth
of $29,000,000, measured as of May 28, 2013, amd e end of each fiscal year thereafter. Lifecmas in compliance with all financial covenants
as of August 26, 2012.

The Term Loan was used to repay the Lifecore’s &ranedit facility with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“Vlle Fargo”). The Letter of Credit
(which replaces a letter of credit previously pded by Wells Fargo) provides liquidity and credipport for the IRBs.

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yagegrest rate swap agreement under the credit agreemith Wells Fargo, which expires
on April 30, 2015. The interest rate swap wasgledied as a cash flow hedge of future interest paysof LIBOR and had a notional amount of $20
million. As a result of the interest rate swap saetion, the Company fixed for a five-year peribd interest rate at 4.24% subject to market based
interest rate risk on $20 million of borrowings endhe credit agreement with Wells Fargo. The Camyjs obligations under the interest rate swap
transaction as to the scheduled payments were mfeahand secured on the same basis as is itatibtig under the credit agreement with Wells
Fargo at the time the agreement was consummatedmentioned in Note 10, upon entering into the fi@sm Loan with BMO Harris the Company
used the proceeds from that loan to pay off theld\Fedrgo credit facility. The swap with Wells Fangas not terminated upon the extinguishment of
the debt with Wells Fargo. As a result of extirglning the debt with Wells Fargo as of May 23, 2ath&,swap was no longer an effective hedge and
therefore, the fair value of the swap at the tiheedebt was extinguished of $347,000 was reversed 6ther comprehensive income and recorded in
other expense during fiscal year 2012. The fduevaf the swap arrangement as of August 26, 20@i2May 27, 2012 was $305,000 and $347,000,
respectively, and is included in other accruedilii#s in the accompanying balance sheet. Theaghan the fair value of the swap of $42,000 fa th
three months ended August 26, 2012 is recordethigr income in the accompanying Consolidated Statgsnof Income.

Landec believes that its cash from operations,galeith existing cash, cash equivalents and marketsdrurities will be sufficient to finance
its operational and capital requirements for astiélae next twelve months.

ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

There have been no material changes to the Congparayket risk during the first quarter of fiscahy@013.
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ltem 4. Controlsand Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management evaluated, with participation of@uief Executive Officer and our Chief Financiaffiodr, the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the etliegberiod covered by this Quarterly Report om&0-Q. Based on this evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officeave concluded that our disclosure controls andgutores are effective in ensuring that information
required to be disclosed in reports filed underEkehange Act is recorded, processed, summarizédegorted within the time periods specified by
the Securities and Exchange Commission, and aeetefé in providing reasonable assurance thatmmébion required to be disclosed by the Company
in such reports is accumulated and communicatéiet@€ompany’s management, including its Chief ExeelOfficer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repartin

There were no changes in our internal controls éimancial reporting during the fiscal quarter eddeugust 26, 2012 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieef, our internal controls over financial repogtin

-31-




Item 1.

PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this report, the Company is npady to any legal proceedings.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Iltem 2.

Item 3.

Item 4.

Item 5.

Iltem 6.

There have been no significant changes to the Coypask factors which are included and describettie Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended May 27, 2012 filed with the Securities andtange Commission on August 8, 2012.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securitiesnal Use of Proceeds

There were no unregistered sales of equity seesiriti shares repurchased by the Company durirfigstiae quarter ended on August 26, 2(
Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

Other Information

None.

Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Title:

31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to secti302 of the Sarban«+Oxley Act of 2002
31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to secti302of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS* XBRL Instance

101.SCH’ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Scher

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculatic

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definitio

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labe

101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentati

+  Filed herewith

* XBRL information is furnished and not filed arpart of a registration statement or prospeduptirposes of sections 11 or 12 of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deeroefiled for purposes of section 18 of the SecesitExchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and otherwise is not subject to liabilitger these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg@ Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussdRaport to be signed on its behall
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Off
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

Date: October 3, 2012
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Exhibit 31.]
CERTIFICATION

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly remor Form 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscantain any untrue statement of a materialdacmit to state a material fact neces:
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period covere
this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this quarterly report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resaoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this quarterly
report;

4, The registrant's other certifyin§iadr and | are responsible for establishing anéhta#ning disclosure controls and procedures (disiele in
Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(e) and 15d- 15(e) )irstiednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f))for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disstescontrols and procedures , or caused such disg@ontrols and procedures to be designed under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known to us by others withi
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this quarterly report is being prepared;

(b) designed such intéouatrol over financial reporting, or caused suernal control over financial reporting to be ideed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgagdang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for externa
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

(c) evaluated the effeetiess of the registrant's disclosure controlspgadedures and presented in this quarterly report o
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures , as of the end oféhieg covered by this quarterly report based omsuc
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this gedy report any change in the registrant’s in&wcontrol over financial reporting that occurradidg the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual m@ploat has materially affected, or is reasondikigly
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal thover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial reporting,
the registrant's auditors and the audit commitfabeoregistrant’s board of directors (or persoedqrming the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant dgincies and material weaknesses in the desigpeyation of internal control over financial repogiwhich are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigtsaability to record, process, summarize and refpmancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whethemnot material, that involves management or otingpleyees who have a significant role in the regists
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 3, 2012

/sl Gary T. Steele
Gary T. Steele

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly remor Form 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report dagscantain any untrue statement of a materialdacmit to state a material fact neces:
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period covere
this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this quarterly report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resaoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this quarterly
report;

4, The registrant's other certifyin§iadr and | are responsible for establishing anéhta#ning disclosure controls and procedures (disiele in
Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15(e) and 15d- 15(e) )irstiednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f))for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disstescontrols and procedures , or caused such disg@ontrols and procedures to be designed under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsbsidiaries, is made known to us by others withi
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this quarterly report is being prepared;

(b) designed such intéouatrol over financial reporting, or caused suernal control over financial reporting to be ideed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgagdang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for externa
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles ;

(c) evaluated the effeetiess of the registrant's disclosure controlspgadedures and presented in this quarterly report o
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures , as of the end oféhieg covered by this quarterly report based omsuc
evaluation ; and

(d) disclosed in this gedy report any change in the registrant’s in&wcontrol over financial reporting that occurradidg the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual m@ploat has materially affected, or is reasondikigly
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal thover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial reporting,
the registrant's auditors and the audit commitfabeoregistrant’s board of directors (or persoedqrming the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant dgincies and material weaknesses in the desigpeyation of internal control over financial repogiwhich are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigtsaability to record, process, summarize and refpmancial information; and

(b) any fraud, whethemnot material, that involves management or otingpleyees who have a significant role in the regists
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 3, 2012
/sl Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinner
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landarfidration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending August 26, 2012 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), |, Gary T. Steele, Clirecutive Officer and President of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135(Qudpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxleyp#2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with theterements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Sem#iExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retfairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: October 3, 2012

/sl Gary T. Steele

Gary T. Steele
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

*

The foregoing certification is being furnishsolely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbandsyOxct of 2002 (subsections (a) and

(b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, Unit&dtes Code) and is not being filed as part ofFtiren 10-Q or as a separate
disclosure document.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landarfidration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending August 26, 2012 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Report”), I, Gregory S. Skinnéce President of Finance and Adminstration

and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certifyrsuant to 18 U.S.C. 8§ 1350, as adopted pursa@n906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with theterements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Sem&iExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retfairly presents, in all material respects, timaficial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: October 3, 20 12

/sl Gregory S. Skinner

Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Accounting Officer

*

The foregoing certification is being furnishsolely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbandsyOxct of 2002 (subsections (a) and
(b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, Unit&dtes Code) and is not being filed as part ofFtiren 10-Q or as a separate
disclosure document.



